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STATEMENT OF THE CASE
This is an appeal from a conviction of maintaining

a common nnisance in violation of the National Pro-

hibition Act (Title 27 U. S. C. Sec. 33). The appellant

upon the same trial vras acquitted in the Court below

of charges of jjossession of liquor and sale of liquor,

respectively.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS

Appellant specifies eight (8) distinct errors commit-

ted by the trial Court (Tr. pp. 62-71) which will be here

taken up in order:



First: (AjDiDellant's page 10) That the trial Court

erred in denying at the close of the Government's case,

defendant's motion for a directed verdict for insuffi-

ciency of the evidence.

Appellant urges upon the Court that the mainten-

ance of a common nuisance as defined in the National

Prohibition Act is not established as existing on the

l^remises involved, on July 4, 1930, by evidence of the

sale of six drinks of whiskey on June 26, 1930.

"The test of the statutory nuisance is not the

number of sales made or the length of time during
which intoxicating liquor is kept on the premises.

A single sale or the keeping of intoxicating liquor

for a brief period, with other attendant circum-
stances, may be sufficient to constitute the offense."

Marco vs. U. S. (C. C. A. 9), 26 Fed. (2d) 315,

Certiorari denied 278 U. S. 613.

Here, the premises are described b}^ the agents in

their testimony (Tr. pp. 17-25) as a public store, ad-

mittedly owned by the defendant (Tr. p. 25) equipj^ed

with a poolroom and bar in the rear, where the agents

were brought by two "pickups," there to be readily

served with intoxicating liquor, six drinks in all.

By this evidence of sale of intoxicating liquor, under

such incriminating circumstances, the jury was justi-

fied in finding that the defendant was maintaining a

nuisance, as defined in the statute, on the day of the

sale.

Evidence of sale of liquor made a few days prior to

the time charged in an indictment for maintaining a

common nuisance, is admissible to prove the nuisance,

since it tends to establish an unlawful status not limited



in duration to the precise time of the occurrence

charged.

Peterson v. U. S. (C. C. A. 9), 4 Fed. (2d) 702.

Strada v. U. S. (C. C. A. 9), 281 Fed. 143.

SECOND SPECIFICATION OF ERROR

Appellant's second specification of error is directed

to tlie denial of his motion for a directed verdict at the

conclusion of all of the evidence. The grounds urged

uj^on this motion are the same as those given in sup-

port of the similar motion made upon the close of the

goverimient's evidence, and there being no reference to

any of the testimony offered for the defendant below,

the argument upon the first specified error and the au-

thorities there cited, are applicable in answer to ap-

pellant's second specification of error.

THIRD AND FOURTH SPECIFICATIONS OF
ERROR

Two distinct assignments of misconduct by the

United States Attorney in his closing argument, were

made by counsel for defendant below. It appears that

the Court in each instance cured the error, if au}^ there

was, by appropriate instructions to the jur}^ (Tr. pp.

48-50). No further action was requested of the Court,

which did exactly what counsel for defendant below re-

quested of it. In such state of the record there is no

adverse ruling which can be complained of here.

FIFTH SPECIFICATION OF ERROR

Appellant here specifies as error the instructions

(Tr. Page 54) given by the Court to the effect that the



4

liquor involved in the illegal transaction is not required

to be produced in evidence, and that such evidence is

frequently unavailable.

The only exception taken to this instruction, (Tr.

page 56) specifies no grounds except that "that is not

a proper instruction. '

' Inasmuch as the impropriety is

not indicated, the record presents no adverse ruling.

In any event the instruction is a plain statement of the

law intended for the guidance of the jury.

SIXTH SPECIFICATION OF ERROR

The Court instructed the jury to the effect that the

rule of the civil law regarding agency, is equally appli-

cable to the criminal law (Tr. page 54), and that it

is not necessary for the Grovernment to prove that the

offense was committed by the defendant personally.

There followed an instruction as to the liability as a

principal of one who aids and abets in the commission

of a crime (Tr. Page 55).

These instructions were both necessary and proper,

particularly in view of defendant's contention that he

did not personally make the sales of liquor on June 26,

1930. Again, the evidence revealed that defendant was

conducting a place where intoxicating liquor was read-

ily dispensed, either by the owner or some persons act-

ing for him (Tr. pp. 17-23). The circumstances under

which the sale of drinks was made on June 26, 1930,

as well as the sale itself, are material and important

evidence, particularly as to the nuisance count in the

indictment.



There is ample authority for the validity of sur-h in-

structions :

Sec. 332 Criminal Code of the United States
(Title 18 U. S. C. Sec. 550.)

Rossi V. United States (C. C. A. 8), 16 Fed.
(2nd) 712.

Briggs v. United States (C. C. A. 6), 45 Fed.
(2nd) 481.

Butler Hotel Co. v. United States (C. C. A. 9),
35 Fed. (2d) 76.

The exception to this instruction (Tr. p. 56) was

upon the grounds that "it would tend to convince the

minds of the jury." Instructions are intended to con-

A'ince the minds of the jury as to the rules of law by

which they are to be guided in determining the facts of

the case.

SEVENTH SPECIFICATION OF ERROR.

This specification cites as error the refusal of a new

trial made ujoon the grounds of alleged error dealt with

above, and the additional ground of newly discovered

evidence not available at the trial (Tr. pp. 9-10).

The affidavit in support of the motion for a new trial

(Tr. p. 11) if taken as true, could at most establish only

the absence of the defendant below from his place of

business on the date of the sale of drinks, June 26,

1930, which evidence would be immaterial. No show-

ing is made as to unavailability of this new evidence at

the trial. The motion for new trial was therefore prop-

erly denied.



EIGHTH SPECIFICATION OF ERROR

Defendant below moved in arrest of judgment upon

three grounds (Tr. p. 13). The first, that the verdict is

contrary to law, because the evidence was confined to

the single sale of drinks is disposed of above, upon

other specifications.

The second, for inconsistency of the verdict, is an-

swered by the decisions of this Court in the cases cited

by appellant in his brief (pp. 28-29) to wit,

Hesse vs. U. S. (C. C. A. 9), 28 Fed. (2d) 770.

United States v. Anderson (C. C. A. 9), 31 Fed.
(2d) 436.

And this Court has squarely decided this question in

the case of

Lambert vs. U. S. (C. C. A. 9), 26 Fed. (2d) 773

wherein the court said

:

"The plaintiff in error Lambert was proprietor
of the place, and we think the jury was warranted
in finding that he knowingly provided the room
in which intoxicating liquor was possessed, kept,

and sold, and to that extent at least he aided and
abetted others in possessing intoxicating liquor

and in maintainins: a common nuisance."
^t5

And the Supreme Court has indicated that separate

offenses may be based upon the same facts, without in-

consistency.

Alhrecht v. U. S., 273 U. S. 1, 11.

The third ground of the motion in arrest of judg-

ment (Tr. p. 14) to wit: insufficiency of the indictment

to state a public offense, is apparently abandoned by

appellant.



CONCLUSION"

The evidence shows a sale of liquor^ by some person

connected with the premises. The identity of that per-

son becomes immaterial in view of the verdict of guilty

as to maintenance of a nuisance. The sale of drinka

was made to agents of the government, who were taken

to the place operated by the defendant as proprietor^

under circumstances which led the jury to believe that

it was a place where liquor was unlawfully kept for

sale. Acquittal of the proprietor of the sale on June

26, 1930, did not leave the jury without evidence upon

which to base their verdict of guilty on the charge

of maintaining a nuisance eight days later. The of-

fenses charged were separate and distinct and so also

must be the verdicts as to each of the counts.

It is respectfully submitted that the conviction be-

low should be af&rmed.

Geo J. Hatfield.

United States Attorney^

H. A. VA^ DEE Zee,

Asst. TJrvited States Attorney

^

Atto'jmeys for Appellee,




